
City of Mt. Angel 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

                           

CITY COUNCIL                             February 1, 2016        7:00 PM                                  
 

The Mt. Angel City Council met in a regular session in the Community Meeting Room, 290 E. Charles 

Street, Mt. Angel, Oregon.  

1. CALL TO ORDER: The regular session of the City Council was called to order at 7:04 p.m. by 
Mayor Otte. 

 
2. FLAG SALUTE:  Mayor Otte led the salute to the flag.  
 
3. ROLL CALL: 

 
COUNCIL    STAFF  
Andrew Otte, Mayor   Eileen Stein, City Manager 
Kelly Grassman, Council President  Justin Hogue, Assistant to the City Manager 
Darren Beyer, Councilor                         Mike Healy, Police Chief 
Karl Bischoff, Councilor    Daniel Shafer, Public Works Lead Utility Worker 
Don Fleck, Councilor    
Pete Wall, Councilor              

       
ABSENT 
Ray Eder, Councilor 

 

4.   PRESENTATIONS, GUESTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS:   No presentations this evening. 

 

5.   APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS:   

Don Robison gave a presentation on Father Bernard Youth Center (FBYC).   The center is celebrating 
its 10th year anniversary.  He shared with the Council the community work provided by FBYC. He 
stated FBYC is opening a new retreat center soon and would like the Council to consider a crosswalk 
on S. Main near the new retreat center so guests can safely cross the street.  He shared a video with the 
Council on the work of FBYC showing the mission and work of the retreat center.  
 

Mr. Robison also presented some slides to give the Council a better idea of the facilities operated by 
FBYC and how the retreat center impact’s young people’s lives.  As FBYC grows, they are looking for 
ways to engage the community, he said.  While FBYC is not seen locally as a destination camp, they are 
gaining national recognition as a destination camp and anticipate an increase in the number of people 
utilizing the facility. He talked about the house FBYC recently purchased to be used as a new retreat 
center.  Because the campus spreads to both sides of the street, there is a need for a safe crossing.   He 
showed a slide of where FBYC staff believes a safe crossing could be and which he thought would 
help with American Disability Act (ADA) compliance. City Manager Stein shared that she had 

Page 1 of 7



requested Mr. Robison consider alternative crosswalk locations as some of the sidewalks in the area 
slope more incrementally than the one by the proposed crosswalk and might make a difference in 
achieving ADA compliance. 

Councilor Grassman asked about the cost of the project. Mr. Robison said he had an estimate, but he 
was working from his original proposal which has changed a bit, the original estimate was $10,000 but 
with the changes, it is probably closer to $11-12,000.  City Manager Stein stated that there may be 
funds available through the sidewalk repair program to assist with the cost.  Councilor Fleck asked for 
Public Works comments on the sidewalk.  Lead Worker Daniel Shafer said he felt Mr. Robison 
explained it nicely.  A new crosswalk in that area would help with the traffic patterns.  Wherever foot 
traffic is directed for crossing the street, there will need to be at least some sidewalk work to comply 
with the ADA requirement of one foot of sidewalk for each inch of incline.  The cost would be the 
biggest barrier, but it is a sound idea from a public works standpoint. Mr. Robison suggested that he 
get bids for a couple of options as there may be a way to have the crosswalk terminate in a different 
spot, which might be a cost savings to the City.  He does feel that with 500-700 people making that 
crossing there is a need for the safest crossing possible.  

A compounding problem is there is no sidewalk for quite a ways north of the property, so that makes 
crossing the street further to the north unfeasible.   Councilor Fleck pointed out that there is a 
significant amount of foot traffic crossing the street in that same area already, including children from 
the shelter and participants in other programs that are held in that area. Mayor Otte asked how much 
of an impact would it be to lose the southernmost crosswalk.  Mr. Robison stated they often 
discourage the use of the southern crosswalk during their retreats anyway.  That crosswalk does not 
provide a line of sight into the dip in the road, as a result, there is not very much time to respond if a 
vehicle is entering town beyond the speed limit.  FBYC is very diligent about warning guests and to 
date there has been any problems.  Councilor Bischoff asked if there had been any discussion with the 
County and if they had jurisdiction there.  Lead Worker Shafer said that it is a city road and is Mt. 
Angel’s jurisdiction. Councilor Fleck asked if the existing crosswalk was ADA compliant and if 
removing it would alter the ADA compliance for foot traffic in the area. Lead Worker Shafer said that 
both crosswalks are ADA compliant with the proper ramps.  He does see some additional work 
needed for a new crosswalk in the proposed area in order to meet ADA standards and he feels that 
having three crosswalks in such a short stretch of road may be problematic.   If he were to eliminate a 
crosswalk it would be the middle one.  However, at this present time, the existing crosswalks are in 
very good condition and meet the ADA requirements.  He did point out that often people cross at that 
point anyway, even without a crosswalk.   Mr. Robison stated that each of the current crosswalks do 
serve a unique purpose and are well utilized for the facilities in the area, both FBYC, St. Benedict’s 
shelter, and the Sister’s monastery.  Mr. Robison does feel that the joint effort of the City and FBYC 
several years ago to install the solar powered blinking light has added to the safety of the area.   That 
light was installed through a generous donation to the City from one of the benefactors of the Youth 
Center.  He would be willing to discuss with the other organizations in the area, the idea of having just 
two crosswalks and reports back to the City, so the Council has as much information as possible to 
make a good decision.   Councilor Fleck asked if the new crosswalk would be a better location for the 
school children from the shelter as a safe means to get to and from the bus.  Mr. Robison said that he 
hadn’t considered that, but it certainly would appear to enhance safety for them as well.  City Manager 
Stein said that she is interested in looking at extending the sidewalk from a different location and 
seeing if there would be a cost savings.  Mayor Otte said that he would appreciate any more 

Page 2 of 7



information that could be provided to the City on this matter and when that information is prepared, 
the Council can look at it and make a decision.   

6.   REVIEW CORRESPONDENCE:  None 

 

7.   REVIEW WRITTEN STAFF REPORTS: No discussion on staff reports.  

 

8.   REVIEW ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: No discussion on accounts payable 

 

9.   CONSENT AGENDA:  

a. Approve Regular Meeting Minutes for January 4, 2016 
b. Approve FY 16-17 Budget Calendar 
c. Approve Liquor License Renewals for 2016 

 
City Manager Stein reviewed the scheduling for budget meetings and asked them to review their 
calendars. Councilor Grassman asked if there were any date conflicts with the Budget Committee.  City 
Manager Stein said they are in the process of contacting the Budget Committee now. Councilor 
Grassman said she just wanted to avoid scheduling conflicts which has been a problem in the past.  

 
Councilor Beyer moved to approve the Consent Agenda; Councilor Bischoff seconded. 
 

Beyer:  AYE 
Bischoff: AYE 

Eder:  ABSENT 

Wall:  AYE 

 

Fleck:                    AYE 

Otte:  AYE   

Grassman:            AYE 

   

The motion passed. 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Councilor Grassman moved to conduct a second reading and approve: AN ORDINANCE 

DECLARING TERRITORY ANNEXED TO THE CITY OF MT. ANGEL AND AMENDING 

THE MT. ANGEL ZONING MAP; Councilor Beyer seconded. 

 
Beyer:  AYE     Otte:         AYE 
Bischoff: AYE     Grassman:       AYE 
Eder:  ABSENT    Wall:            AYE 
Fleck:  AYE 
 

   The motion passed. 
 

11. NEW BUSINESS: 
a. Adopting New Council Rules 
City Manager Stein spoke of modifications to the Council Rules. There were only minor adjustments 
such as minor grammatical changes and the addition of “discussion of future agenda items” and the 
“Council agenda calendar” to the monthly meeting agenda as was requested at the Council Goal 

Page 3 of 7



Setting Session.  City Manager Stein stated that the only caveat is that staff may not be able to gather 
comprehensive background information on items pulled from the agenda calendar for discussion.   

Councilor Beyer moved to approve a resolution repealing Resolution No. 1419 and readopting rules 
governing the proceedings and conduct of the City Council; Councilor Wall seconded.  

Beyer:  AYE     Otte:         AYE 
Bischoff: AYE     Grassman:       AYE 
Eder:  ABSENT    Wall:            AYE 
Fleck:  AYE 

 
   The motion passed. 
 

b. Approval of City of Mt. Angel Vision Mission, Goals, and Work Plan 
  

Councilor Bischoff moved to approve the 2016 City of Mt. Angel Vision, Mission, Goals and Work 
Plan and authorize the City Manager to move forward with these activities and incorporate them into 
the FY 16-17 Budget; Councilor Beyer seconded.  

 
Beyer:  AYE     Otte:         AYE 
Bischoff: AYE     Grassman:       AYE 
Eder:  ABSENT    Wall:            AYE 
Fleck:  AYE 
 

    The motion passed. 
 

c.    Discussion of Future Agenda Items – See Council Agenda Calendar  

 
City Manager Stein said that staff would like to hold a workshop on Tuesday, February 16th, because 
of the Monday holiday.  The workshop would be a budget strategy session with the Budget 
Committee.  The items that the Council had asked staff to look into further will be presented at this 
meeting. 
 
Councilor Grassman asked what was being envisioned for the budget workshop. City Manager Stein 
said that they would be talking about contingency, potential sources of General Fund revenue, some 
additional information on levies, and the possible formation of a library district. 
 
Mayor Otte stated that he would be late to the meeting. 
  
Councilor Grassman asked how this is going to work with the Budget Committee.  She asked if they 
are being informed of where the City was and is financially, so they understand the reasoning for the 
various proposals. City Manager Stein indicated that was correct.  Councilor Beyer said the goal is to 
help keep the Budget Committee in the loop.  Mayor Otte said that even if the meeting just 
familiarizes everyone with the basics of the budget it may help lead to a quicker decision.  City 
Manager Stein said anytime staff is directed to put a new budget strategy in place, citing the examples 
that had been discussed, garnering support and input from the community to help formulate the 
direction is helpful.  Councilor Grassman said the Budget Committee should be informed of the 

Page 4 of 7



issues that have been discussed so they can be a part of the discussion.  In the past, she felt the 
Budget Committee was not able to participate actively because they did not have enough information 
or understand their role.  City Manager Stein said she and Finance Director Seifried are briefing 
Budget Committee members and bringing them up to speed.  The staff has met with three members 
so far and is meeting with the others before the February 16th meeting.   
 
City Manager Stein stated Angelo Planning will be at the March meeting to present a final report of 
the Development Code assessment project. Staff has prepared the required letter for or proceeding 
with Phase II, which will be the actual code update.  The Master Fee resolution will also be on the 
agenda for the March meeting.  Mayor Otte and Councilor Grassman asked about having a 
discussion on the Mt. Angel Telephone franchise agreement added to the March meeting.   
 
City Manager Stein explained that the list of items presented in the packet under future agenda items 
are things that will need to be scheduled for review at one of the upcoming meetings, such as the 
Façade Improvement Program. Six applications were received for the program and $23,000 is 
available to award between the grant from Marion County and an additional contribution from the 
Chamber of Commerce.  The total amount requested is $48,000.  The Council will need to review 
the applications and decide how the money will be awarded.  She also noted the Council has wanted 
to discuss the composition of the Park/Tree Board, repealing the old marijuana taxation ordinance is 
needed at some point as a housekeeping measure, and renewing the Mt. Angel Telephone franchise 
agreement. Councilor Grassman asked if all could be placed on the March schedule.  Mayor Otte 
thought that was too much for the March meeting. City Manager Stein stated that the way she hopes 
this agenda item will work is that in future meetings, if there is extra time, some of these items could 
be addressed in addition to the scheduled agenda items.   
 
City Manager Stein stated that the Council will need to address the service connection request of 
Max Ruef.  He has requested to be connected to City services though his property is outside city 
limits.  He is interested in annexing into the city, but is concerned about the slim margin on the other 
vote.  The City Attorney brought up the question of a clause in the service connection agreement 
that would require him to annex into the city within one year, or some period of time determined by 
the Council.  Mayor Otte said that that language would have to state that he would attempt to annex, 
since he would be unable to annex without the approval of the voters.   
 
City Manager Stein stated staff had received an additional inquiry about a property considering 
annexing. This prompted a staff discussion about the possibility of other properties with 
extraterritorial services being interested in annexing to avoid the out of city utility rates.  She 
proposed reaching out to these customers to bundle together an annexation request in one ballot 
measure for the November 2016 election.  This election does not cost the City to participate in, nor 
does the May primary election either, she noted.  She asked for Council approval on investigating the 
possibility of bundling these smaller annexations together and preparing them for the November 
ballot.  City Manager Stein asked Assistant to the City Manager Hogue to prepare a map of all 
extraterritorial properties receiving city services.  Mayor Otte questioned whether it was in the 
purview of the Council to make this decision.  City Manager Stein assured the Council that they 
would inform the property owners of the opportunity, but this would not be a required annexation, 
if the property owner said no that would be fine.  She also presented the idea that, while the Council 
policy is for the property owner to pay all of the costs of annexation, because there is an opportunity 
for more than one property to be annexed, the City pay the costs. The election costs will be free, but 

Page 5 of 7



she presented the idea that the City should pay for the preparation of the legal property descriptions 
for each property.  She explained her reasoning that, even though the City would bear this cost, the 
properties once annexed, would then result in additional tax revenue for the City.   
 
Mayor Otte expressed concern that bundling the properties all together would mean that an 
individual property might be refused annexation if people did not want one of the bundled 
properties annexed into the city.  He believes that the properties would have a better chance of being 
approval individually.  Councilor Fleck recommended that staff research this and report back to the 
Council.  Mayor Otte did question what would happen if properties on both sides of Academy Street 
decided to annex, would the street remain a county street.  City Manager Stein said that the street 
would then come into the city as well.  The Council and staff discussed some of the issues involved 
in scenarios like Academy Street where the City would then become responsible for new street 
improvements and other long term issues in those areas.   
 
Councilor Bischoff suggested that perhaps staff should consider, not one bundle of annexations, but 
several bundles that would make more geographical sense.  City Manager Stein said that she thought 
what might actually come out of this process are several logical bundles of properties that would 
apply for annexation together. She said that the process of talking to the property owners and 
obtaining more information would probably help guide the decision making process, but staff was 
seeking permission to start that process. Councilor Wall said it is worth discussing this option with 
the property owners.  The discussion will help reveal whether or not it is an idea that the Council 
would want to pursue.  Other Council members agreed.   

 
12. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 

City Manager Stein stated again that they had received the Façade Improvement proposals and would 
be working on those. 
  
City Manager Stein asked the Council to review her email about the condition of City Hall.  She is 
waiting on a cost proposal for a “selective demolition” to confirm the status of the building.  If there 
are indeed walls and parts of the roof that are not connected properly or improper infill of concrete or 
bricks then the building is seismically unstable.  She will report to the Council once she gets the cost 
estimate. City Manager Stein stated there was an estimate for the roof repair which came in at about 
$6,000.  Councilor Grassman asked if the building is seismically sound, would the City be looking at 
some different roofing options.  City Manager Stein said she was waiting to hear the reports before 
exploring that further.  Councilor Beyer asked what the cost of fixing the walls was.  City Manager 
Stein said she does not know the answer to this yet. Councilor Fleck asked about grants available if the 
building is seismically unsafe.  City Manager Stein said that there are grants available to relocate the 
Police Department because it is considered an essential facility. City Hall however, is not eligible, she 
stated. 
 

13. COUNCILOR/COMMITTEE REPORTS:  
Councilor Wall reminded the Council that Wurstfest is coming up this weekend.  Drew Carney was 
scheduled to broadcast live on Friday morning at 5:00 a.m. at the Festhalle to feature Wurstfest on the 
news.   
 
Councilor Grassman welcomed new staff member, Colby Kemp, to Public Works. 
 

Page 6 of 7






